

Senate Bill No. 142–Senator Gustavson

Joint Sponsors: Assemblymen Fiore, Hansen, Carrillo; Dickman, Ellison, Jones, O’Neill, Oscarson, Titus and Wheeler

CHAPTER.....

AN ACT relating to motor vehicles; revising the definition of a trimobile; revising provisions governing the Account for the Program for the Education of Motorcycle Riders; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel’s Digest:

Existing law defines a trimobile to mean a motor vehicle designed to travel with three wheels on the ground, two of which are power driven. (NRS 482.129, 486.057) **Sections 3.3 and 3.7** of this bill revise the definition of a trimobile to provide that at least one of the wheels must be power driven and excludes from the definition a motorcycle with a sidecar.

Existing law provides for an Account for the Program for the Education of Motorcycle Riders and authorizes the use of money from the Account to pay the expenses of the Program for the Education of Motorcycle Riders or for any other purpose authorized by the Legislature. (NRS 486.372) **Section 4.5** of this bill removes the provision allowing money from the Account to be used for any other purpose authorized by the Legislature.

EXPLANATION – Matter in *bolded italics* is new; matter between brackets ~~omitted material~~ is material to be omitted.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Sections 1-3. (Deleted by amendment.)

Sec. 3.3. NRS 482.129 is hereby amended to read as follows:

482.129 “Trimobile” means every motor vehicle designed to travel with three wheels in contact with the ground, ~~two~~ *at least one* of which ~~are~~ *is* power driven. *The term does not include a motorcycle with a sidecar.*

Sec. 3.7. NRS 486.057 is hereby amended to read as follows:

486.057 “Trimobile” means every motor vehicle designed to travel with three wheels in contact with the ground, ~~two~~ *at least one* of which ~~are~~ *is* power driven. *The term does not include a motorcycle with a sidecar.*

Sec. 4. (Deleted by amendment.)

Sec. 4.5. NRS 486.372 is hereby amended to read as follows:

486.372 1. The Director shall:

(a) Establish the Program for the Education of Motorcycle Riders.

(b) Appoint an Administrator to carry out the Program.



(c) Consult regularly with the Advisory Board on Motorcycle Safety concerning the content and implementation of the Program.

(d) Approve courses of instruction provided by public or private organizations which comply with the requirements established for the Program.

(e) Adopt rules and regulations which are necessary to carry out the Program.

2. The Director may contract for the provision of services necessary for the Program.

3. The Account for the Program for the Education of Motorcycle Riders is hereby created in the State General Fund. The Director shall administer the Account.

4. The money in the Account for the Program for the Education of Motorcycle Riders may *only* be used ~~to~~
~~—(a) To~~ to pay the expenses of the Program, including reimbursement to instructors licensed pursuant to NRS 486.375 for services provided for the Program . ~~to~~

~~—(b) For any other purpose authorized by the Legislature.~~

5. The interest and income earned on the money in the Account, after deducting any applicable charges, must be credited to the Account.

6. Any money remaining in the Account for the Program for the Education of Motorcycle Riders at the end of a fiscal year does not revert to the State General Fund, and the balance in the Account must be carried forward to the next fiscal year.

Sec. 5. (Deleted by amendment.)

Sec. 6. This act becomes effective upon passage and approval.

